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BOARD OF PHARMACY: It is illegal to use the wirds "Drug
Sundries" as a sign without licensed
pharmactists in charge; a license
cannot be reinstated when revoked,
but applicant may apply for new license,

Leptomber 19, 1541

T3

o
ronoruble Cherles H. Lohrer, (ecrevary '

ztete Doord of shormacy ] Fi L E

West Ileins, flssourl
Dear Sir: ' . ff#rf

sometime sgo you submlitted to this department for
an offleial opinlon two questions perteining to the
soard of Phermacy. The facts relating to your first
question src as Tfollows:

"ihrou, hout thae state, we heve a nusber
of stores opereting as Urug Sundry Dtores.
In some instences, thsir signs do not
stress tho word 'Drug' over sny other
word 1in the sign, while 1l a number of
instaiices the word 'Urug! appears in
mach ledbger letters than the.othoer
woras on the sign. One instance of
this is in Lxeelsior Oprings vwhere a
-maen opersites o store of thls type on
the front oif which he hes a ieon slgn
carrying the words '"Adsns Drug Cundrics,!
with the 'Adems' gbove the word 'Drug!
and 'Cundries! below thie word 'Drug!.
both the top and lower words are In
suiell charccters, snd are not very
brillisntly illuwninsted, while the worid
PLDRUGY 18 in much lerger l: bters, and
ls very brilliantly lighted, so that at
a distence all of thesse words that are
readable 1s the word 'Drug.! Ye have
hed consilderuble trouvule with stores
o' this type, snd qulte a ifew coanleints
from legitimate drug stores concerning
thils type oi «dvertising, end we would
like an opinion from your depertment as
to whethor or not the uso »f the word

'orug Sundries! 1s 1n any way & violetion
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of the rharmecy Law. Also as to the
use of thils term, when the word 'Drug!
does stand out over any other word in
the term.

"We find thet in most stores of this

type they zre selling some ltems in
violstion of the Pharmscy Law, and, of °
course, we insisted that they dlscontlinue
these practices, and at the present we
haeve been successful in thls regard."

. We have made diligent sesrch of the statutes, inde-~
pendent of the chspter and artlcle relating solely to
the Borrd of Pharmacy, and we find no statute under Crimes
and Punishments that prohibits the using of signs such as
"Adams Drug Sundries" in the manner in which you outline
in your letter. The only sectlon which we shall consider,
and which mlght be relevant, 1s Section 10020, R. S. Mo.
1939, which 1s as follows:

o

"It shall be unlawful for any person
not legally llcensed as a pharmecist
to take, use or exhiblt the title of
pharmeclst, or licensed or reglstered
pharmaclst, or the title drugglst or
apothecary, or any other titls or de-
scription of like import."

This section has never been construed by the courts,
but we find & somewhat simllar sectlon in purport in the
State of New York. (People v. Bernstein, 261 N. Y. S.
381) The section in that state resds as follows, l. c.
3821

“No person or corporstion shall here-
after carry on, conduct or transact
business under a name which contalns

as a part thereof the words 'drugs',
'medicinest, 'drug store' or 'phsrmacy',
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or similar terms or combinstions of
terms, or in sny mamner by advertisement
circular poster, sign or otherwige
describe or refer to the pilsce ©F
buslness conducted gx.such person or
corporation by the terms 'drugs',

medicines’, 'drup stors! or gharmacx.'
¥R E R SR

Section 10020, quoted supra, which was formerly
Section 13154, R. 3. io. 1929, was amended in 1939, Laws
of iiismsourl, 1959, page 375. Ve do not find that Lt was
emended in such a manner us would havs any effect on the
question which you present.

In the declsion of People v. tornsteln, 261 . Y. 5.

381, the statute quoted sbove was under consideratlion.
Due to the fact that the wording of the lilssouri statute
and the lew York ststute waes so vastly different, 1t wlll
not aid us msterislly in the questicn under conslderation
except 1n so far as the word "sundries" msy be concerned.
In discussing the word "sundries," the-court ssid, 1l. c.

5841

"While these articles may be sold by an
unllcensed person, they may not be adver-
tised for sale under the generic terms
interdlcted by section 1366. They may
not, therefore, be advertised under the
generic words 'druga' or 'medicines.!

* The placing of the word 'sundries' after

the word 'drug' does not save from the
inhibition of the statute. The statute
prohibite the use of the word 'drugs! or
'medicines' 'in any manner by advertise-
ment.! iioreover, the word !'sundries’

.means miscellaenlies or various ltems which

mey be considered together, without being
seperately specified or identifled. The
statutory vieletion is made more clear
by transposing the words 'drug sundries.'!
They would then, in meaning advertlse
tvarious mliscellaneous unspscifled
drugs!, a form of advertlsing within

the ban of the ststute 1ln a store con-
ducted by an unllicensed person,”
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And again, at 1. c. 3883

*This unlicensed defendent violated
Section 1355 in hls sdvertisment
which used the word 'druga' ln the
phrase 'drug sundries,' even though
he be referring to srticles which he
is permitted to sell under the statute,
but which statute limite his privilege
to sell them by requiring him to avoid
the use of the word 'drug' so that the
public may not be misled into thinking
that he 1s a licensed pharmaclst or
drugglst. The ststute confines him to
‘the advertising of the sale of these
articles in schedule C of section 1364
- by thelr 1individual nemes."

The stetute prohiblts anyone unlicensed as a
pharmacist to use or exhibit the title of "Drug§ista"
It 1s possible that by the term "drug sundries,” the
public micht be misled to think that smch a person is
a licensed pharmacist or drugglst, and hence the same
would constitute a violation of Seection 10020,

~As stated sbove, the courts have not passed on
Section 10020, but we sre of the opinlon that the statute
is broad encugh to covér the situstion as you present 1t
as 1t contains the further provision Yor description of
like import."

I,

Your second question relates to the following.
matiers: '

"The other matter concerning which we
would like to have an opinion is that

of the power of the Boerd to take action
in reinst8ting a pharmacist whose licenss

has been revoked by the Board. It is
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presumptive thet the Board having power .
to revoke & license, they should have

the power to reinstate such licenses,

and we find some record of the Board
having done this in the past, but cannot
- find sny specific authority to take action
‘along this line, We have recently had

a request from & man whose license was
revoked ¥ years ago, for a hearing before
the Board to request reinstatement of hils
license. Ve informed this man that we
would check the matter to your offlce,
and sct according to your sdvice in

this matter.,

"Should it be within the province of the
Board to hold such a hearing, we presume
that 1t should be necessary for him to

offer compstent evidence of such a nature

thaet the Board should be convinced of the.
fact that thils new evidence was meterially

In his fevor before we could act favorably
- on his case, or could the Board arbitrarislly

reveras the declsion, cither made by itself
or by a former Boerd, if they were convinced
that the public heelth would be properly
protected by reinstating such a person as

a phermacist? Should the Board be sble

to follow this course and reinstate a

men whose license has been revoked, vhat

fees would be collsctible by the Board?

For example, thls man mentloned previously,
. had hils license revoked 9 years ago, and
-1t hardly seems falr to phermacists who

have been paylng thelr renewal fees over

thet perlod to reinstate him, if possible,
without payment of the renewal fees cover-
ing thst period of time.

"If there sre sny other angles to clther
- of these questions, of which we should be
informed, we would appreciate such eadvice
as you can give us."
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Wie think 1t necesseary to distinguish betwesn power
of the Board to reinstste licenses and granting to an
epplicant & new license, ,

There 18 & principle of law lald down in the declsion
of Garfleld v, Unlted Ctates ex rel., Goldsby, 30 App.
Cases (D. C.) 177, 1. c. 183, as follows:

"It 1s # % well settled # #, when the
judgment or discretion of an executive
officer has been completely exerclsed
in the performance of & specific duty,
the act performed is beyond his review
or recell, unless power to that ex-
tent hes also been conferred upon him."

Consldering the provisions of Sectlon 10007, R. S.
Mo. 1939, we find that the Board of Pharmacy has authority
to revoke licenses for certaln reasons and under certain
conditions, but the statute is silent as to reinsteting
& license once 1t is revoked. Therefore, applyling the
principle mentioned in the Garfield decision above, it
would eppeer thet the autliority of the Board to relnstate
a llcense, once 1t has been revoked, 1s beyond the review
or recall of the Board,

The specific instance which you give of a former
licensee heving had his lilcenae revoked nine years ago
wlshing to have a hearing before the Board for reinstatement,
in our opinion cannot be granted, but there is nothing
in the statute to prevent the former licensee from applyling
for a new llcense, and we think the Board would have
authority to proceed in 1its discretion to consider former
licensee's spplication for a license as pharmaciat under
the first portion of Sectlon 10007. If the Board now
finde that none of the dlsquallflcatlions of the former
licensee, &8 contained in the statute, exist, he may be
granted a license. . ‘

The provislons of the stastutes relating to the
revoking of a licenss of an Intoxlcating liquor dealer
stete that such revocation 1s finsl, snd thet a licensee
is precluded from obtaining enother license for two years.
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BPut, as stated hereinbefore, we think the Board of
Pharmacy has such authority as outlined above due to
the fact that there ls no prohibltion in the statute.

As to the fees, having held that you cennot
relnstate the former licensee and having polnted out
the procedure in event he files a new applicetion, we
think the fee question 1s ellminated and that he should
only pay the fees which are necessary to be pald by a
new applicant.

Respectfully submltted,

OLLIVER W. NOQLEN
Aasistent Attorney General

APPROVLD:

VANE C. THURLO
{Acting) Attorney Gemneral
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